
From: Kozak, Laura
To: PSR Wisconsin
Subject: RE: Questions regarding Point Beach Nuclear Power Plant
Date: Wednesday, August 17, 2022 10:01:33 AM
Attachments: PBNP Safety Questions Letter.pdf

Dear Ms. Mortensen:
 
I received your email and questions/concerns about Point Beach on July 18, 2022.  Below are
responses to your inquiry on various topics.
 

July 31st, 2021, Plant Shutdown
 
On July 31, 2021, Point Beach Unit 1 was manually tripped due to a motor failure of a main
feedwater pump.  While there were equipment anomalies - including one feedwater regulating
bypass valve not operating in automatic control, one condenser steam dump valve not fully closing
after operating, and one of the crossover steam dump isolation valves not fully closing – they did not
involve safety-related equipment and did not affect the safe shutdown of the reactor. These
equipment issues involved power production components.  All safety-related equipment functioned
as expected.  The NRC inspectors responded to the event to monitor the licensee’s actions. 
Subsequently the NRC inspectors reviewed the licensee event report (LER) submitted to the NRC.
The LER review is documented in inspection report 50-266/2022002; 50-301/2022002 (ADAMS
ML22208A123).  The inspectors concluded that there were no violations of regulatory requirements
associated with the event. The performance indicator for Unplanned Scrams remains in the licensee
response column of the NRC’s Action Matrix, indicating acceptable safety performance. 
 
Regarding your questions on pumps and valves, the licensee is subject to various requirements to
maintain plant equipment.  The NRC routinely inspects these licensee activities. However, the
agency’s focus is on equipment that is important to safety rather than equipment that is important
for power production (e.g., non-safety equipment).  The licensee is also required to identify
problems and correct deficiencies, including age-related failures of safety-related equipment. The
NRC inspection program for operating reactors evaluates corrective actions on a sampling basis
consistent with the significance of issues that arise.
 
February 9, 2022, NRC Office of Inspector General Report on Counterfeit, Fraudulent and Suspect
Items
 
After the issuance of the NRC OIG report, the NRC performed additional reviews to determine if
there was an immediate safety issue.  The NRC is not aware of any counterfeit, fraudulent and
suspect items (CFSI) at Point Beach.  Generally speaking, the NRC staff has reviewed available data in
licensee event reports, 10 CFR Part 21 reports, and inspection reports and concluded that the data
does not support the existence of CFSI in structures, systems, and components that could adversely
impact safety. 
 
Although the NRC determined that the CFSI does not represent an immediate safety concern, the
staff performed an assessment of the agency’s oversight of activities related to CFSI and recognized
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July 18, 2022


Laura C. Kozak, Acting Chief
DRP, Branch 4
(630) 829-9604
laura.kozak@nrc.gov


Docket Nos. 05000266; 05000301
License Nos. DPR–24; DPR–27


RE: INFORMATION MEETING WITH A QUESTION-AND-ANSWER SESSION TO DISCUSS NRC
2021 END-OF-CYCLE PLANT PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT OF POINT BEACH NUCLEAR
PLANT, UNITS 1 AND 2


Dear Ms. Kozak,


Following the informational meeting held in-person on June 23, 2022, Physicians for Social
Responsibility Wisconsin (PSR WI) and Nukewatch, non-profit organizations, are herein submitting the
following comments and questions regarding the safety performance of Point Beach Nuclear Plant, Units
1 and 2.


On July 31, 2021, Point Beach Nuclear Reactor Unit 1 was scrammed due to mechanical failures. After a
review of the NRC Event Report 55390 and the independent report from PSR WI’s expert, Arnold
Gundersen, PSR WI views this shutdown as a failure to adequately monitor and maintain the aging
components within the Point Beach reactor units.


Can you please answer the following questions in relation to the July 31st shutdown:
● How do you account for the multiple failures listed below that led to ultimate shutdown? And


how have you fixed these issues to prevent future failures?
○ One of two feedwater pumps failed and half of the required cooling water entered the


reactors
○ Control circuitry to reduce its power automatically failed leading to a manual shut down
○ A steam valve became stuck leading to a manual intervention to close other valves
○ A feed regulating valve failed leading to a manual intervention by operators to take


control of the computer system and sent excess heat waste into atmosphere instead of
Lake Michigan


● Have you inspected similar valves and pumps for mechanical deficiencies or aging mechanisms?
*Especially considering historical shutdowns due valve and pump failures on December 13, 2005;
November 19, 2004; and July 25, 1997.


● What are the plans to prevent similar incidents from occurring in both units going forward?


Next, given the February 9, 2022 report from the NRC's Office of the Inspector General (OIG) that
indicated that virtually all U.S. reactors may have sub-standard, fraudulent or counterfeit parts in them;
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that NRC did not know which reactors were affected, nor what parts were sub-standard, fraudulent or
counterfeit. Would you please answer the following questions:


● Is Point Beach afflicted with these parts?  What parts have been identified and what are the safety
implications?


● What corrective actions, if any, are required under NRC regulations?
● What corrective actions have taken place to date?
● What corrective actions are planned for the future?
● What procedural changes is NRC implementing to identify sub-standard parts?
● What is the timeline for these investigations and when will the results be reported to the public?


Point Beach Nuclear Power Plant is located directly on the shores of Lake Michigan and is located in a
Derecho corridor. There are safety concerns related to these environmental situations.


● Have you implemented any safety procedures at Point Beach Nuclear Power Plant after learning
about the damage and shutdown of Duane Arnold Energy Plant following the Iowa Derecho in
August 2020?


● How are you protecting the safety of the two reactors, high-level nuclear waste storage areas and
plant operations from the variable Lake Michigan water levels and consequent erosion of the
shoreline?


Embrittlement is the loss of strength, ductility and resistance to cracking. According to information from
2014, Point Beach Reactor Unit 2 is one of the most embrittled reactors in the country. One of our
significant concerns regarding embrittlement are the safety implications of embrittled reactor pressure
vessels (RPV), especially during an emergency shutdown.


● What are you doing to address the aging of the reactors in terms of embrittlement?
● Do you have a procedure in place to prevent a RPV crack?
● Are you actively testing the coupons in both reactors at Point Beach to assess the level of


embrittlement? What is the basis for determining if a reactor is no longer safe in terms of its
embrittlement prior to a failure?


● Will you require an autopsy of the embrittled RPV at the now closed Palisades reactor before
considering a license extension for the Point Beach reactors?


Thank you for your time and assistance in understanding the safety of Point Beach Nuclear Power Plant.
PSR WI and Nukewatch would appreciate answers to our questions that are in-depth and technical as well
as a version of the answers that our members and the general public can understand.


PSR WI  and Nukewatch request a response to our questions within three weeks from the date of this
letter.


Sincerely,
Hannah Mortensen, Amy Schulz, RN, Ann Behrmann, MD, and Alfred Meyer - Physicians for Social
Responsibility Wisconsin
Kelly Lundeen, Lindsay Potter, and John LaForge - Nukewatch


Physicians for Social Responsibility Wisconsin
info@psrwisconsin.org | (608) 232-9945
720 Hill St, Ste 200, Madison, WI 53705



https://journals.ametsoc.org/view/journals/mwre/144/4/mwr-d-15-0256.1.xml

https://journals.ametsoc.org/view/journals/mwre/144/4/mwr-d-15-0256.1.xml

https://www.mlive.com/news/kalamazoo/2014/08/palisades_nuclear_plant_embrit.html#:~:text=%22Palisades%20is%20one%20of%20the,the%20safety%20of%20the%20public.

mailto:info@psrwisconsin.org





areas where the OIG reports provide opportunities for the agency to make improvements to the
implementation of existing programs and processes.  Most of these improvements were
encompassed by the planned actions underway in response to the OIG’s audit report (OIG-22-A-06),
in which the NRC committed to performing several activities to enhance the NRC’s regulatory
activities related to CFSI.  For example, these activities include revising inspection guidance related
to CFSI, conducting additional training on CFSI for NRC inspectors, and performing additional
outreach activities to raise awareness of CFSI in the supply chain.  The NRC is in the process of
accomplishing these planned activities and has committed to completing these activities by 2023.
 
Safety Concerns Related to Environmental Conditions
 
NRC requirements ensure that the reactors and the nuclear waste storage areas are designed and
built to withstand anticipated variations in Lake Michigan water levels and to ensure the safety of
the reactor and the storage facilities.  The NRC performs routine inspections and walkdowns at the
plant and waste storage facilities, monitoring lake water levels to ensure they are adequate for plant
safety. All inspections indicate the plant continues to operate safely and will do so through various
water levels
The NRC inspects the licensee’s procedures for severe weather using inspection procedure
71111.01, “Adverse Weather Protection”.  These inspections are conducted prior to seasonal
changes in weather and prior to impending severe weather.  Should a severe weather event occur at
Point Beach like what occurred at Duane Arnold in August 2020, the NRC would implement its Event
Follow-up procedures to monitor the response to an event. Point Beach is designed to remain safe
during a similar event. It is also important to understand that Duane Arnold remained safe
throughout the derecho event when damage occurred to offsite power lines and non-safety related
cooling towers.
 
Reactor Pressure Vessel Embrittlement
 
The reactor pressure vessel is designed and fabricated to have an extremely low probability of
failure.  The licensee is required to perform in-service inspections to monitor reactor pressure vessel
integrity and the NRC performs inspections of the licensee’s activities.  If during these activities, an
indication of a flaw or crack is identified, NRC requirements would ensure that appropriate
corrective action be taken, including an assessment of the operability of the reactor coolant pressure
boundary in accordance with the plant’s technical specifications.
 
The NRC has various requirements to address reactor pressure vessel aging and embrittlement to
ensure reactor safety, which form the basis for ensuring reactor safety. 
 
Licensees must meet the requirements of 10 CFR Part 50, Appendix G, "Fracture Toughness
Requirements", Appendix H, "Reactor Vessel Material Surveillance Program Requirements", and (for
pressurized water reactors like Point Beach) 10 CFR Part 50.61 and 50.61a – the "PTS rule" and
"alternate PTS rule," respectively. The licensee’s programs in place and assessments that have been
performed to demonstrate compliance with these requirements ensure the vessel's steel retains
adequate fracture toughness to protect the vessel's integrity throughout the reactor’s licensed
operating period.
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Point Beach has a Reactor Vessel Material Surveillance Program which includes the removal and
testing of reactor surveillance capsules from the reactor to provide data in assessing reactor vessel
integrity in accordance with Appendix H to 10 CFR Part 50. This program was recently reviewed and
evaluated by the NRC on February 23, 2022, in support of the licensee’s subsequent license renewal
application.  Additionally, the licensee’s application includes analyses that specifically address
reactor vessel neutron embrittlement during the subsequent period of extended operation.  The
NRC staff’s assessments of this program and these embrittlement analyses are documented in a
safety evaluation for the licensee’s subsequent license renewal application (ADAMS ML22054A108). 
More information on Point Beach subsequent license renewal can be found at Point Beach SLR.  The
details of the Reactor Vessel Material Surveillance Program approved for the current operating
license is documented in the licensee’s Pressure Temperature Limits Report (ADAMS ML20009E096).
 
The NRC is reviewing the possibility of acquiring components from the closed Palisades plant for
research. The NRC does look to identify and determine which materials are viable and can fulfill
technical objectives for the NRC’s mission. We recognize that performing research on acquired
materials can provide insights for component performance in commercial nuclear power plants and
allow for a greater understanding of material degradation. To that end, the agency has secured
material from operating and other permanently shut-down plants for research purposes in the past.

 
Furthermore, the NRC, DOE and the nuclear industry have activities to acquire materials from both
domestic and international plants to learn more about a variety of aging issues. The NRC held a
public meeting on its harvesting activities on June 27. The meeting summary and related information
(such as the slide presentations) can be found here (Public Meeting, Status of NRC Harvesting
Activities, June 27, 2022 (ML22178A155)).
 
In your email you referenced the in-person open house public meeting for Point Beach on June 23,
2022, at the Lester Public Library in Two Rivers, Wisconsin.  The purpose of the meeting was to
discuss NRC’s assessment of the safety performance at Point Beach Nuclear Plant in 2021.  A
summary of the meeting can be found in the NRC’s Agencywide Documents and Management
System (ADAMS ML22181B118).  The NRC determined that in 2021 Point Beach safety performance
was acceptable with all performance indicators and inspection findings determined to be of very low
safety significance.  Point Beach operated safely in 2021 and continues to operate safely today.
 
Thank you for your inquiry.  I hope this information is helpful.
 
 
Laura Kozak
Acting Branch Chief, Branch 4
Division of Reactor Projects, RIII
 
 
 
 

From: PSR Wisconsin <info@psrwisconsin.org> 
Sent: Monday, July 18, 2022 11:07 AM
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To: Kozak, Laura <Laura.Kozak@nrc.gov>
Subject: [External_Sender] Questions regarding Point Beach Nuclear Power Plant
 
Hello Laura,
 
My name is Hannah Mortensen and I am the executive director of Physicians for Social Responsibility
Wisconsin. I am submitting the attached PDF document to the NRC regarding safety and the 2021
performance assessment at Point Beach Nuclear Power Plant. The letter contains several questions
that we would appreciate answers to within three weeks time. 
 
Thank you for your time and help.
 
Sincerely,
Hannah Mortensen
 
--
PSR Wisconsin
info@psrwisconsin.org
www.psr-wisconsin.org
720 Hill Street, Suite 200
Madison, WI 53705
608.232.9945
 
Please consider the environment before printing this email.
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